
CITY COUNCIL 
Princess Washington, Mayor Pro Tem 
Alma Hernandez, Mayor 
Michael J Hudson, Member 
Jenalee Dawson, Member

CITY COUNCIL MEETING

A G E N D A
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SUISUN CITY COUNCIL,

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY,

AND HOUSING AUTHORITY
TUESDAY, JANUARY 24, 2023

6:30 PM

Suisun City Council Chambers - 701 Civic Center Boulevard - Suisun City, California

NOTICE
The following Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority meeting may include teleconference participation by: 
Council/Board Members Michael Hudson, Jenalee Dawson, Mayor Pro Tem Princess Washington, and Mayor Alma 
Hernandez, in accordance with subdivisions (b), (e), or (f) of Section 54953 of the Government Code, as applicable. 

FACE MASKS ARE RECOMMENDED FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WHILE IN CITY FACILITIES IF NOT 
FULLY VACCINATED.  IF YOU DO NOT HAVE A FACE MASK, ONE WILL BE PROVIDED FOR YOU. 

THE CITY COUNCIL HAS RESUMED IN-PERSON MEETINGS IN ADDITION TO ZOOM. A LIMITED NUMBER OF 
SEATS ARE AVAILABLE, TO RESERVE A SEAT PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK AT clerk@suisun.com OR

 (707) 421-7302.

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION: 
WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join

MEETING ID:  830 7655 2326  
CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING BY EMAILING
CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 6 PM), VIA WEBSITE, OR ZOOM CALL IN PHONE NUMBER (707) 438-1720

(If attending the meeting via phone press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to unmute/mute for public comment.)

(Next Ord. No. – 799)
 (Next City Council Res. No. 2023 – 10)

Next Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency Res. No. SA2023 - 01)
 (Next Housing Authority Res. No. HA2023 – 01)



 1 City Manager Update – (Folsom: gfolsom@suisun.com).

 2 Introduction and Swearing In of Suisun City Fire Department Personnel – (Lopez:
bllopez@suisun.com). 
 

 Recess to Short Break for Celebration of Fire Department Personnel. 

 3 Council/Board Members Updates

 City Council
 

 4 Appointing ________________ to the Vacant Councilmember Seat for the Remainder of the
Current Term – (Folsom: gfolsom@suisun.com).

 5 Administer Oath of Office to Newly Appointed Council 
 
Member. Remarks by Newly Appointed Council Member.     
 
 

ROLL CALL
Council /Board Members
Pledge of Allegiance
Invocation
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers / Boardmembers should be
identified at this time.)
 
REPORTS (Informational items only.)
 

 
PRESENTATION/APPOINTMENTS
(Presentations, Awards, Proclamations, Appointments).
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per California
Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the Mayor/Chair.
Speaker cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the City Clerk. By
law, no prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment period, although
informational answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a future agenda.)
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS
 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR  NONE
Consent calendar items requiring little or no discussion may be acted upon with one motion.
 
PUBLIC HEARING   NONE
 
GENERAL BUSINESS
 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS
 



 6 Non-Discussion Items  

 
ROLL CALL OF NEWLY SEATED COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBERS
 
REPORTS: (Informational items only)
 

 
ADJOURNMENT to Celebration for New Council Member.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Public Access To Agenda Documents
A complete packet of information containing staff reports and exhibits related to each item for the open session of
this meeting, and provided to the City Council, are available for public review at least 72 hours prior to a Council
/Agency/Authority Meeting at Suisun City Hall 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City. Agenda related writings or
documents provided to a majority of the Council/Board/Commissioners less than 72 hours prior to a
Council/Agency/Authority meeting related to an agenda item for the open session of this meeting will be made
available for public inspection during normal business hours. An agenda packet is also located at the entrance to
the Council Chambers during the meeting for public review. The city may charge photocopying charges for
requested copies of such documents. To the extent feasible, the agenda packet is available for online public
viewing on the City’s website: www.suisun.com/government/city-council/city-council

The City Council/Agency/Authority hopes to conclude its public business by 10:00 p.m. No new items will be
taken up after 10:00 p.m., unless so moved by a majority of the City Council,  and any items remaining will be
agendized for the next meeting. The agendas have been prepared with the hope that all items scheduled will be
discussed within the time allowed.

Accommodations 
If you require an accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (707) 421-7302 or
clerk@suisun.com. The City’s reasonable accommodation policy is available for review on the City’s website at
www.suisun.com/government/city-council/, you may request an electronic copy or have a copy mailed to you.
Please note that for accommodations that are not readily available, you must make your request as soon as you can
prior to the time of the meeting.

Decorum
All participants are expected to conduct themselves with mutual respect. Conduct that disrupts meetings will be
addressed in accordance with Section 54957.95 of the Government Code.

Ordinances
Ordinances are city laws contained in the Suisun City Municipal Code. Enacting a new city law or changing an
existing one is a two-step process. Government Code 36934 provides, except when, after reading the title, further
reading is waived by regular motion adopted by majority vote all ordinances shall be read in full either at the time
of introduction or passage; provided, however, that a reading of the title or ordinance shall not be required if the
title is included on the published agenda and a copy of the full ordinance is made available to the public online and
in print at the meeting prior to the introduction or passage.

Certification Of Posting
Agendas are posted at least 72 hours in advance of regular meetings at Suisun City Hall, 701 Civic Center
Boulevard, Suisun City, CA. Agendas may be posted at other Suisun City locations including:

Suisun City Fire Station, 621 Pintail Drive, Suisun City, CA;
Suisun City Senior Center, 318 Merganser Drive, Suisun City, CA;
Joe Nelson Center, 611 Village Drive, Suisun City, CA;
Harbor Master Office, 800 Kellogg Street, Suisun City, CA.

I, Donna Pock, Deputy City Clerk for the City of Suisun City, declare under penalty of perjury that the above
agenda was posted and available for review, in compliance with the Brown Act. 



AGENDA TRANSMITTAL

MEETING DATE: January 24, 2023

CITY AGENDA ITEM: Appointing ________________ to the Vacant Councilmember Seat for the
Remainder of the Current Term.

FISCAL IMPACT: None.

STRATEGIC PLAN: Provide Good Governance. 

BACKGROUND: After the November 8, 2022, election, a current council member was elected to the
office of the mayor. As such, that council member vacated their seat when sworn in as the new mayor.
The result is that there is a vacancy on the City Council, which must be filled. The vacated office will
terminate at the end of 2024.  

Suisun Municipal Code Section 2.04.040 and Government Code Section 36512 govern the process by
which vacancies in the elected offices of city council members are filled. Specifically, Section 36512
provides that a city council shall, within 60 days of the date of vacancy (i.e., no later than February 3,
2023), fill such vacancy by appointment, or call a special election to fill the vacancy for the remainder
of the vacated term. Section 36512 does not provide any specific guidance on the manner in which the
City Council selects an individual to fill a vacancy. Council has provided direction for an application
process to fill the vacancy. 

At the Council meeting on December 6, 2022, the Council directed the City Attorney’s office to return
at the December 20, 2022 meeting with the appropriate documentation to adopt an application and
interview process. At the January 17th meeting, the City Council interviewed 11 applicants for the
vacancy, and selected the following 6 applicants to move on to the January 24th meeting:

1. Anthony Adams
2. Herbert I. Dardon
3. Katrina Garcia
4. Steven M. Orly
5. Amit Pal
6. Jonathan R. Richardson

STAFF REPORT: On January 24, 2023, the City Council will deliberate on the six finalists and choose
one candidate to fill the seat. The item may be continued further, but the City Council must take action
no later than February 3, 2023, which is the date 60 days following the date the council seat was vacated
(December 6, 2022). If the City Council does not appoint to the vacant seat by February 3rd, it will call
a special election.

The following is the process that Council approved for the final interview process:

Procedure to conduct interviews and appoint a Councilmember

Any applicant who is not physically present for the interview shall be disqualified unless the City

Item 4

1



Council finds their absence excusable with just cause. Candidates who are excused must
participate by Zoom, and have their camera on for the entirety of their interview.
The interviews will be the reverse order interviewed on January 17th as follows:

1. Herbert I. Dardon
2. Jonathan R. Richardson
3. Katrina Garcia
4. Anthony Adams
5. Steven Olry
6. Amit Pal

Applicants will have up to 2 minutes to answer each of 4 questions from the City Council, one
question from each Councilmember. Different questions may be asked of all applicants.
Public Comment will open after all applicants have been interviewed and shall be limited to 2
minutes per speaker.
Applicants will not be allowed to participate in Public Comment on this item.
The City Council will deliberate following all interviews and Public Comment.
The City Council has the option to do a preliminary vote to narrow down the pool of candidates
further before deliberation.
Following deliberation, City Council will select one candidate to fill the seat; alternatively, the
proceedings may be continued. Once a candidate is selected, they will be sworn in immediately.
The appointed councilmember will hold office for the unexpired balance of the vacated seat’s
term, as the vacancy occurred in the second half of the former incumbent’s term, which runs
through the end of 2024.
The City Clerk will swear in the appointed Councilmember.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council interview City Council
applicants and appoint one candidate to fill the vacant seat on the City Council.

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:
1. Applications for City Council
2. Resolution No. 2023-___: A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Suisun City,

Appointing _____________ to the Vacant Councilmember Seat for the Remainder of the Current
Term.

PREPARED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager
REVIEWED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 
APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

ATTACHMENTS:
1 Applications for City Council.pdf
2 Resolution of the City Council of the City of Suisun City Adopting ______- to the Vacant
Councilmember Seat for the Remainder of the Current Term.pdf

Item 4

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1750939/1_Applications_for_City_Council.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1750122/2__Resolution_of_the_City_Council_of_the_City_of_Suisun_City_Adopting_______-_to_the_Vacant_Councilmember_Seat_for_the_Remainder_of_the_Current_Term.pdf


Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Dardon, Herbert

3



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Dardon, Herbert

4



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Dardon, Herbert

5



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Dardon, Herbert

6



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Dardon, Herbert

7



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Dardon, Herbert

8



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Dardon, Herbert

9



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Dardon, Herbert

10



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Dardon, Herbert

11



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Dardon, Herbert

12



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Richardson, Jonathan

13



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Richardson, Jonathan

14



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Richardson, Jonathan

15



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Richardson, Jonathan

16



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Richardson, Jonathan

17



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Richardson, Jonathan

18



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Richardson, Jonathan

19



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

20



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Garcia, Katrina

21



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Garcia, Katrina

22



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Garcia, Katrina

23



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Garcia, Katrina

24



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Garcia, Katrina

25



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Garcia, Katrina

26



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Garcia, Katrina

27



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Garcia, Katrina

28



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Adams, Anthony

29



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Adams, Anthony

30



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Adams, Anthony

31



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Adams, Anthony

32



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Adams, Anthony

33



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Adams, Anthony

34



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Adams, Anthony

35



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Adams, Anthony

36



Item 4 
Attachment 1 
Olry, Steven

37



Item 4 
Attachment 1 
Olry, Steven

38



Item 4 
Attachment 1 
Olry, Steven

39



Item 4 
Attachment 1 
Olry, Steven

40



Item 4 
Attachment 1 
Olry, Steven

41



Item 4 
Attachment 1 
Olry, Steven

42



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Pal, Amit

43



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Pal, Amit

44



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Pal, Amit

45



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Pal, Amit

46



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Pal, Amit

47



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Pal, Amit

48



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Pal, Amit

49



Item 4 
Attachment 1 

Pal, Amit

50



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 
APPOINTING ________________ TO THE VACANT COUNCILMEMBER SEAT 

FOR THE REMAINDER OF THE CURRENT TERM 
 

WHEREAS, after the November 8, 2022 election, a then-Councilmember whose term 

was set to end in 2024 was elected to the office of the Mayor. Once the Councilmember was 

sworn in as Mayor, her Council seat became vacant. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Suisun City Municipal Code Section 2.04.040 and Section 

36512 of the Government Code, the Council must fill the vacancy by appointment, or call a 

special election to fill the vacancy, within 60 days of the vacancy, i.e., by February 3, 2023. 

Government Code Section 36512 does not provide any specific guidance on the manner in 

which the Council selects an individual to fill a vacancy. 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 36512(b)(2)(B) also provides that “if the 

vacancy occurs in the second half of a term of office, the person appointed to fill the vacancy 

shall hold office for the unexpired term of the former incumbent.” Because the vacancy 

occurred in the second half of the councilmember’s term, any appointment will run through 

the end of the term. 

WHEREAS, at the Council meeting on December 6, 2022, the Council directed the 

City Attorney’s office to return at the December 20, 2022 meeting with the appropriate 

documentation to adopt an application and interview process. 

WHEREAS, on December 20, 2022, the Council agreed on an application and 

interview process and, accordingly, the Council adopted Resolution No. 2022-167, adopting 

the procedures related to the filling of the vacancy on the City Council. 

WHEREAS, the Council reviewed and considered all properly submitted applications 

and interviewed 11 applicants on January 17, 2023, during a publicly noticed “town hall”-

style public meeting, and selected six applicants to move on to the January 24, 2023 Council 

meeting, for further discussion and deliberation regarding the remaining applicants. 

WHEREAS, at the Council meeting on January 24, 2023, the Council conducted a 

further interview of the remaining applicants and, afterward, discussed and deliberated for the 

purpose of selecting one applicant to appoint to the vacant councilmember seat. 

Item 4 
Attachment 2

51



 

Resolution No. 2023- 
Adopted  
Page 2 of 2 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City as follows: 

Section 1. The recitals hereto are true and correct and by this reference 

incorporated herein. 

Section 2. Pursuant to Suisun Municipal Code Section 2.04.040 and Government 

Code Section 36512, the Council hereby appoints ___________________ to fill the vacant 

seat on the City Council for the remainder of the vacated seat’s term, which will terminate at 

the end of 2024. 

Section 3. If any provision of this Resolution or the application of any such 

provision to any person or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other 

provisions or applications of this Resolution that can be given effect without the invalid 

provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Resolution are severable. The 

Council declares that the Council would have adopted this Resolution irrespective of the 

invalidity of any particular portion of this Resolution. 

Section 4. This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately after 

its adoption by the Council, and shall expire upon the expiration of the vacated seat’s term. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City duly held on January 24, 2023, by the following vote: 

AYES:  Council Members: 
NOES:  Council Members: 
ABSENT:  Council Members: 
ABSTAIN: Council Members: 
 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 24th day of January 2023.  
 
 

_________________________________  
Anita Skinner 
City Clerk 
 
 

  

Item 4 
Attachment 2

52


	City Council Agenda
	Item 4 - Appoitment to the Vacant Coucilmember Seat 



